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PART I 

INTRODUCTION 

In January 1993, the Mikisew Cree Fist Nation submitted a specific claim to 
the Minister for Indian Affairs and Northern Devel~pment,~ seeking the provi- 
sion of economic benefits under Treaty 8. The First Nation was informed in 
March 1994 that the Department of Indian Affairs and Northern Development 
(DIAND) had made a preliminaty decision to reject the claim,2 but neither 
party appeared to consider this decision to be final. More correspondence 
and meetings followed, and in mid-June 1995 DIAND indicated that it was 
willing to discuss the First Nation's claim under the Specific Claims Policy 
(subject to formal acceptance).3 In responding to later inquiries by the First 
Nation, Canada took the position that acceptance of the claim for negotiation 
was in abeyance until a policy review of economic benefits claims was 
~ompleted.~ 

On F e b r u q  23, 1996, in the absence of a clear decision from the Minis- 
ter on whether the claim would be accepted for negotiation, the First Nation 
asked the Indian Claims Commission (the Commission) to conduct an 

Statement of Claim. Mikisew Cree First Nation. Re: Fdure of he  Crown in Right of Csnada to Provide Collective 
Economic Benefils Pwsuant to Treay 8, January 1993 (ICC Documents. pp. 83-140). A Band Cound Resolu- 
tion dated December 9, 1992, had a u t h o ~ e d  the submission of the claim (ICC Documenn, pp. 81-82). See 
also he  covering letter, Jerome Skvik, Ackrayd, Rasta. Roth &Day. Barristers & Soki ton ,  to Manfred Klein. 
Speufic Claunr West, referring to an enclosed Band Council Resolution and the Statement of Claun, January 12, 
1993 (ICC Documents, pp. 182-83). A rubsequent letter requests an amendment to the Statemea of Claim, 
such amendment aeknowledninc an annual docation of ammunition lo the Band: Jerome Slavik to Madred ~~ ~ 

fflein, January 22, 1993 ( l ~ ~ d o c u m e n n ,  p. 184). 
2 The ~wi~er  of the lelter had quall6ed the decirion is a "preliminary'' one; effectively he invited the First Nation 

to punue the claim further by rubmiwg more evidence or mitten argument. AUan Talhan,  Specific Claims 
W e y  D M D ,  to Jerome Slavik, ,4ckroyd, Piasla. Roth & Day. Banisters and Salicitors, March 29, 1994 (ICC 
Docmenls, pp. 193-94). 

4 Rem Westland. Director General. S o ~ i f i c  ClUns Branch. DIAND. to Chief :\rehie Wsququan. June 12, I995 (ICC . . . ~ 

Docmentr, pi. 412-13) 
4 Mike Bouhano, Specific Claims Banch. D M ,  to Jerome Slavik, Ackroyd. R m a .  Roth Dav. Barriaen and 

Solicitors. Februaly 7 ,  1996 (ICC Documents. p. 416). 
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inquily. The basis for the request was that the Department's conduct and 
delay were tantamount to a rejection of the claim.' 

Canada's response, on learning of the request, was that the Commission 
had no authority to consider the matter, since the First Nation's specific claim 
had not actually been r e j ~ t e d . ~  Each party submitted written arguments to 
the Commission. In mid-November 196, Commission counsel advised the 
First Nation and Canada that a decision had been made to proceed with the 
inquily requested by the First Nation.' A planning conference had already 
been held in June 1996, and a community session was scheduled for late 
November 1996.8 

On November 20, 1996, the Commission received word that Canada had 
accepted the claim for negotiation.9 Canada's formal offer to negotiate was 
dated December 16, 1 9 9 6 . 1 °  A meeting between the parties was planned for 
Februaly 3, 1 9 9 7 . l '  

This report sets out the background to the First Nation's claim and is 
based entirely on the documents the First Nation provided to the Commis- 
sion. In view of Canada's decision to accept the claim, no further steps have 
been taken by the Commission to inquire into the First Nation's claim, and 
we make no findings of fact. This report is meant simply to advise the public 
that the First Nation's claim has been accepted for negotiation under the 
Specific Claims Policy. 

5 lerome Slank, Ackrwd Fiasu. Roth & Day. Barcisten &Solicitors, to the lndim Claims Comnirsion, February 
!3. I%).)D 1Ci Ilo~umenb pp ,!'.!8, 

u Knn(ar h g r c  t,awd. Vepmmtnt ill JtnUce u isa Crur-lurls Uenakcu. .Wsroctalr Lyll Codnwl, In&*" 
i h r  Commlrrwn. June I? 1~rYi (ICC Voculnclle, pp rbr ' 2 ,  Thc unlcr cldled taat 'Canrda one% not 
w e e  or t h ~ l  the clum hu becn re~rctrd The r lman l  h a  b r ~ n  mvlsed that he  acceounce ol in* chnt 
fir naatiation has been ~Mtvoned vendins the resulf.5 of a re.ew of the issue from a pol& versvecliW. The ... ,. " ..--. 

7 Ron S. Maurice, Commlsslan Counsel, Indlan Oaims Cammlssion, to Jerome Slavik Ackroyd, Piasla, Roth 8 
Bay, Barkten & Solicitorr, md ul Fraqois Daigle, Caunsel, SpeciGe Claims O t m .  November 18, 1996. See 
Aowndut A to this reoon. 

8 s;; I n h  W s  ~onimission. P h i n c  Conference. Mikisew Cree Fint Nation. Trm Entidement to Economic 
Beaefils. Oltaw, June 14, 19% (ICC documents, p. 550) 

, h o ~ m l l c  lrdnrmartun Shrn. hluu*, Deselopmonf.5 Ltd fon Ch~peu\m .uu. to Inam Claun, Luwn.u~on 
Onau-a mth mached letwr? I Dlun Uaquan. Co~hnalor  Re,m:her. M!*rzw l r r c  F r,, \atdon, to l ~ t d ~ u t  
L'lami C,monas.on. \ ~ l c m o e r  I J I NB. mJ .!I lohll (~ncldir %,lilmt Dr!,dn .iiLn~sta. i l a ~ n i  1:.J LnJlln .. .. . 
Government, to Chief Archie Waquan, Sk;sew Cree ~lr;t Nation, ~ocember 7, 1996. 

lo John Sindair, Assistant Deputy MiaBter, VIAND, to Chief Archie Waquzn, Mikisew Cree Flrst Nation. December 
16, 1996 [Appendix 8). 

11 Ian Gny, Senior Negotiator, Speeac Claims Branch, D M ,  to Jerome Slavik Ackravd. Pisla, Roth & Day. 
Barristers & Soliciton, Januaty 17. 1197. 
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MANDATE OF THE INDIAN C W M S  COMMISSION 

The Commission was estabtished in 1991 to assist First Nations and Canada 
in the negotiation and fair resolution of specific claims. Order in Couilcil PC 
1992-1730 empowers the Commission to inquire into and report on whether 
or not Canada properly rejected a specific claim: 

AND rn DO HEW advise that our Commissioners on the basis of Canada's Specific 
Claims Policy published in 1982 and subsequent formal amendmenb or additions as 
announced by the Minister of Indian Mairs and Northern Development (hereinafter 
"the Minister"), by considering only those matters at issue when the dispute was 
initially submitted to the Commission, inquire into and repon on: 

a) whether a claimant has a valid claim for negotiation under the Policy where that 
claim has already been rejected by the Minister; and 

b) which compensation criteria apply in negotiation of a settlement, where a claim- 
ant disagrees with the Minister's determination of the applicable criteria.ll 

If the Commission had completed the inquiry into the Mikisew Cree First 
Nation's claim, the Commissioners would have evaluated that claim based 
upon Canada's Specific Claims Policy. D M  has explained that policy in a 
booklet entitled Outstanding Bgsiness: '4 Native Claims Policy - Specific 
Claims.'3 In particular, the government says that when considering specific 
claims: 

[lit will recognize claims by Indian bands which disclose an outsfanding "lawful obli- 
gation," i.e., an obligation derived from the law on the part of the federal government. 

A lawful obligation may arise in any of the following circumstances: 

i) The nou-fulGUment of a treaty or agreement behveen Indians and the Crown. 

. . . 

THE C W M S  PROCESS 

As outlined in Outstanding Business, a First Nation may submit its specific 
claim to the Minister of Indian Affairs, who acts on behalf of the Government 
of Canada. The claimant First Nation begins the process by submitting a clear 

11 commisron issued September I, 1 9 9  pursuant to Order in Council PC 1992-1730, Julv 27, 1992, amending 
the Commission issued lo Chief Commirs~aner Ham, S. LzForme on August 21, 1991, punuanl lo Order in 
Counc~l PC 1991-1329, July 15. 1991 

13  DUND, Olrlstanding Businem A ivalros urns Policy - Speclf)c C!arms(Ottawd: Minister of Supply and 
SeMcer, 1982). 
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and concise statement of claim, along with a comprehensive historical and 
factual background on which the claim is based. The claim is referred to 
DIAND's Specific Claims Branch (formerly Office of Native Claims). Specific 
Claims generally conducts its own co&rming research into a claim, makes 
claim-related research findings in its possession available to the c h a n t s ,  
and consults with them at each stage of the review process. 

Once all the necessary information has been gathered, the facts and docu- 
ments will be referred by Specific Claims to the Department of Justice Ous- 
tice) for advice on the federal government's lawful obligation. Generally, if 
Justice Ends that the claim discloses an outstanding lawful obligation, the 
First Nation is advised, and Specific Claims will offer to enter into compensa- 
tion negotiations. 

The present claim was first submitted to the Minister in January 1333. 
Three years later, the First Nation had not received any definite answer 
whether its claim would be accepted for negotiation. In February 1996, the 
First Nation asked the Commission to conduct an inquiry into the merits of 
the claim, based on the argument that DIAND's delay was sufficient to bring 
the claim within the Commission's authority. 
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PART I1 

HISTORICAL BACKGROUND 

BACKGROUND TO THE FIRST NATION'S CLAIM 

The Mikisew Cree First Nation is located in northeastern Alberta and was 
previously known as the Fort Chipewyan Cree Band. Most of the Fist Nation's 
1874 members live off reserve in Fort Chipewyan. The First Nation's reserve 
lands were not set aside for it until the late 1980s.14 

The First Nation's representatives signed Treaty 8 in 1899. The treaty 
included the following obligations which were undertaken by Canada: 

And Her Majesty the Queen hereby agrees and undertakes to lay aside reserves for 
such bands as desire reserves. . . and for such families or individual Indians as may 
prefer to Live apart from band reserves, Her Majesty undertakes to provide land in 
severalty. . . the selection of such reserves, and lands in severalty. . . to be 
made. . . after consulting with the Indians concerned as to the locality which may be 
found suitable and open for selection. 

. . .  

FURTHER, Her Majesty agrees to supply each Chief of a Band that selects a reserve, 
for the use of that Band, ten axes, five hand-saws, five augers, one grindstone, and the 
necessary Hes and whetstones. 

FURTHER, Her Majesty agrees that each Band that elects to rake a reserve and culti- 
vate the soil, shall, as soon as convenient after such reserve is set aside and settled 
upon, and the Band has s i m e d  its choice and is prepared to brrak up the soil, 
receive two hoes, one spade, one scythe and two hay forks for every family so settled, 
and for every three families one plough and one harrow, and to the Chief, for the use 
of his Band, hvo hones or a yoke of oxen, and for each Band potatoes, barley, oats 
and wheat. . . and to every family one cow, and every Chief one bull, and one mow- 
ing-machine and one reaper for the use of his Band when it is ready for them; for 
such families as prefer to raise stock instead of cultivating the soil, every family of five 
persons, two cows, and every Chief two bulls and two mowing-machines when ready 

14 Statement of C h ,  ~aragraph 2 (ICC Dwumentr, p. 84); A. Tallman (Spcik C l h s  West), 'Ydihrew Cree 
First Naban, Collective Economic Benefitr Pursuant to TreQ No. 8 - Preliminary nalysu: October 20. 1993 
(ICC Documents, p. 144). 
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for their use, and a like propottion for smaller or larger families. The aforesaid 
articles, machines and cattle to be given one for all for the encouragement of agricul- 
ture and stock raising; and for such B a d s  as prefer to continue hunting and Gshing, 
as much ammunition and hvine for maldng nets annually as will amount in value to 
one dollar per head of the families so engaged in hunting and fishing." 

The last of these clauses sometimes is referred to as a "cows and ploughs" 
entitlement. 

The Report ofCommissioners for Treaty No. 8 seems to indicate that the 
Commissioners understood that it was unlikely that any of the Bands would 
make immediate requests for reserve lands, or for the related economic 
benefits: 

The assistance in farming and ranching is only to be given when the Indians actually 
take to these pursuits, and it is not likely that for many years there will be a call for 
any considerable expenditure under these heads. . . . 

The Indians are given the option of taking reserves or land in severalty. . . .[Als 
the Indians were not prepared to make selections, we con6ned ourselves to an under- 
kd4ng to have reserves and holdings set apart in the future, and the Indians were 
satisfied with the promise that this would be done when required. There is no imme- 
diate necessity for the general laying out of reserves or the allotting of land. . . .I6 

In 1922 the First Nation asked for reserve lands to be  set aside. The 
Indian Agent responsible for the Band commented on the request: 

To protect their interests, as guaranteed by treaty, both [the Chipewyan and the Cree 
of Fort Chipewyan Bands] asked for a reserve, not for farming, as they had no wish to 
farm, nor is the land suited for that purpose, but for hunting and trapping. To make 
the matter definite, I requested both bands to apply for a reservation, naming the area 
selected. This application has been received and is herewith attached." 

Reports for that year, and the next, indicate that both Bands wanted reserve 
lands to be set aside. Five years later, the Agent's Report indicates that no 

I5 Tna(l  No 8, L4ND &Mi&" No OSO57GOW-EE-A-16, Appendir I lo the Fin1 Nltion's Smment a( C h  
(ICC Documem, pp. 99-IW). 

16 Regor1 ol Commissioners for may No. 8, Appendix I to the Fin1 Nation's Slatemeal oi C h  (ICC Documents, 
P. 9'4). 

I7 This ultemem is contained in (heApril l99j repan prepared by Specific C h s  West: "Economic Benetits and 
Tray No. 8 Bands in Albem 1899.1940. The Cree oi fan Chipewyln (M'iwY (ICC Documents, p. 306). 
The slalemenr is attributed to G. Drd, regorfing ID !he Assistant Depuhy and Secretary ai the D e w e n 1  af 
Indian August 15, 1922. Natimd Archives of Canada [hereiflaher NAI,  RG 10. vol. 6921, Me 770/28-3 
PI 2). 
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reserve lands had been set aside for either and notes that the Fort Chipewyan 
Cree were no longer interested in the establishment of reserve lands.I8 

In 1986, Canada and the Cree Band of Fort Chipewyan came to an agree- 
ment dealing with the Band's reserve land entitlement under Treaty 8.19 The 
preamble to the Agreement states that the Crown's undertalungs in Treaty 8 
included the obligation to "lay aside reserves for such bands as desire 
reserves. . . which may be found suitable and open for selection" and that the 
Crown "ha[d] not fulfilled her obligations to the Cree Band in accordance 
with the aforementioned ~ndertaking."~~ Since these obligations had not been 
met, Canada agreed to set aside reserve land (including land within the 
boundaries of Wood Buffalo National Park), to guarantee certain wildlife har- 
vesting rights to the First Nation, to authorize and pay the costs of every 
boundav survey required for the Agreement, and to pay cash compensation 
in the amount of $24 million. 

The 1986 Agreement also contains a clause releasing the Crown from any 
further obligations arising out of the clause in Treaty 8 which obliged the 
Crown "to lay aside reserves for such bands as desire reserves . . . [or] to 
provide land in severalty. . . ." The release states: 

It is understood by the Parties hat this Agreement and in particular the covenants 
contained herein are for t oh l  satisfaction of aU obligations of Her Majesy relating to 
land contained in h e  aforementioned part of the said Treaty" ,and aU manner of 
costs, legal fees, travel and expenses expended by the said Band or its representatives 
for the pulpose of coming to this Agreeme~~t .~~ 

There was no mention in the release clause of Canada's obligations to pro- 
vide the agricultural (economic) benefits contemplated by Treaty 8, and the 
release clause did not refer to any claims which the First Nation might bring 
other than in relation to land. 

lh T ~ I P  i~ll(nleltli 1cs :o~~mmJ I,, :he !pnl 1%; r d p m  prcpdr.0 0% ,prcuc ilu:nr Uon, t;altoln#< B<n<li,r 
3 ~ d  Tc,,~11 No 3 Rmd5 n .\Inrru Id(M-l+.u. The Lrrr., < s t  Fun ;n~pru\an \h&,cs 1CC Ilcrumcnli pp 
i \ cnnabunon~ w.rrc ior inr icwd srar 19!2.?3 .s mr .ntlL,n Pnmeni df,crr'l R u w n  \Irw I I .  ~~~ ~ ~ ~- ,~ ~ .-- ~- ~~~~ 

i922] NA RGI~,MI. 6;21] ae 779na-3 pt 2. For fie hci year 1923-24 ihe &uriiis a rip'on irriGConst: 
RA. Wi!lims to Fiugenid, OKicer Commanding the Royal Canahan Mounted Police, August 6. 1923, Nh, RC 
10, val. 6921, Ne 779/28-3 pt 2. For the fiscal y e u  1927.28, the source is the Agent's Repon oo hnnuiry 
Paymenu, 1927, NA RC LO, vol. 6921, file 779fl8-3 pl 2. 

19 Agreemen4 between Her mjesry fie Queen in Right of Canada and the Cree Band of Fon Chipewyan. December 
21. 1986. 

20 ~ G e e k e n t .  December 23, 1986. pp. 1-2 
? I  That part of Treaty 8 dealt only with the sening axde of reserve tat& lor a band, h e  proweon oi land h 

sever& to individual families or band members, and the manner of selection of such lands. See clause I1 of 
the 1986 Agreement. 

12 Agreement, December 23, 1986. daure 11. 



First Nation's Statement of Claim 
The Statement of Claimz3 refers to more than 60 years of "persistent efforts 
and requests" by the First Nation to have reserve lauds set aside. Even though 
they were requested, the Treaty 8 "collective economic benefits" were not 
paid or delivered to the First Nation, since no reserve lands were set aside 
before the 1986 Agreement. The claimant says that the Band has no record of 
ever receiving the economic benefits that were promised, except for an 
annual allocation of ammunition?' No elder or band member has any recol- 
lection of those other benefits having been received by the First Nation.zi 

The First Nation submitted that since the Mis te r  is in the position of a 
fiduciary, the Minister must demonstrate that the economic benefits the First 
Nation is claiming were actually paid or delivered to the Band. The claimant 
says that the 1986 Agreement dealt with compensation only for the First 
Nation's loss of the use and benefit of reserve lands. It pointed out that 
Canada settled the economic benefits claims of the Woodland Cree and 
Lubicon Lake Bands for $25,000 per band member, but, since the Mikisew 
First Nation was an original party to Treaty 8, rather than a band adhering to 
the treaty sometime after 1889 (as did the Woodland Cree and Lubicon Lake 
Bands), its grievance has a comparatively longer history.l6 

The Statement of Claim seeks the prompt recognition and fulfilment of the 
First Nation's specific claim, namely - compensation for the First Nation's 
loss of the use of, and benefit from, Treaty 8's economic benefits, and argues 
that the Crown should now provide these collective economic benefits to the 
Mikisew Cree First Nation "in a contemporary manner and form acceptable 
to [the] First Nation."27 

In a sworn statement, Chief Archie Waquan, of the Mikisew Cree First 
Nation, says that "[tlhe first time I was apprised of our First Nation's entitle- 
ment to certain economic benefits under the terms of Treaty 8, including the 
'ploughs and cows' provisions, was in 1991" and that "[tlo the best of my 
knowledge or recollection such benefits have never been provided to the 
Mikisew Cree First N a t i ~ n . " ~ ~  

33 Xatement of Clam, January 1993 (ICC Docwnenn, pp. 83-140). incorporating the amendment requested Janu- 
ary 22, 1993 (ICC Documents, p. 184). 

34 Statement of C l d ,  as amended by he January 22, 1993, letter from Jerome S h n k  hduoyd Pinla. Roh & 
Day. B m i r t e n  & Solicitors. lo Manfred Klein. Soecfic Claims West (ICC Documents. o. 1841. . . . .  . 

? j  st*ment of Claim, ~ a r a g d ~ h  4 (ICC Documens, p. 8j). 
26 S m m e t  of C h ,  paragraph 7 (ICC Documents. p. S6) 
37 Statement of Claim. pangraph 13 (ICC Documem. p. 88). 
28 Paragraphs 8 and 10 of the Starutocy Dedaratian of ,Archie Waquan, dated February 31. 1995 (ICC Dacumena, 

pp. 271-72). 
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The 1995 Specific Claims West Report 
The report prepared by Specific Claims West For the Mikisew claim includes 
the following observations and conclusions: 

As this reference [in the Report of Commissioners for Treaty No. Slmakes clear, the 
government never contemplated a blanket distribution of agriculturally-related eco- 
nomic benefits to Treaty No. 8 bands. Instead, it planned to provide such economic 
benefits only when the individual bands satisbed the conditions of the Treaty for the 
receipt of such benefits. 

. . . extant correspondence and other records leave little doubt that for the most 
[part] Chiefs and headmen spoke frankly with visiting representatives of the Depart- 
ment about bands' needs and wants and that those representatives typically facilitated 
most specific band requests. The main exception to this accommodation involved 
requests for farm equipment and livestock from bands judged to be inadequately 
prepared to undertake agriculture on a full-time basis. 

The economic situation of the Crees of Fort Chipewyan was [thatlthey had always 
found their livelihood in the hunting, fishing and trapping resources of the surround- 
ing area.. . . the Crees had requested a reserie in 1922 because they feared losing 
access to traditional resources and not because they had any interest in fanning. 
There are few records documenting economic benefits asked for and received by this 
Band and only one deals with fam-related goods or services. Instead, the surviving 
records emphasize the receipt of ammunition and Eshing mine into the 1 9 4 0 ~ . ~ ~  

COMMUNICATIONS BETWEEN THE PARTIES 

Approximately three years elapsed from the time the First Nation submitted 
the initial economic benefits claim to the Minister of Indian Affairs to when it 
was determined that the Commission would hold an inquiry. During this 
period, Canada and the First Nation had an exchange of correspondence. 

The First Nation's first Statement of Claim is dated January 1993. Late in 
October 1 9 3 ,  the First Nation received a summary of the claim from Specific 
Claims West.Jo After Specific Claims West received the First Nation's response 
to the summary, the claim was referred to Justice for an opinion whether 
there was "a lawful obligation under the Specific Claims Policy." 

19 Speclfic Claims Wesl. "Economic Benefits and T r e q  No. 8 Bands in Aiberta. 1899.1940, April 1 9 W  (ICC 
Documenls, pp. 282, 285, 304). 

lo .Uan Tallman, Assistant Negotiaor, SpeuGc Claims Wert. D M ,  to Jerome Slavik, Ackragd, Piasta. Roih &Day, 
Barristers & Soliciton. October 30, 1593, and accompanpng document. "for discussion purposes onlv." 
''z%!&ew Cree First Nation, Collective Economic Benefits Pursuant la TreaN No. 8 - Preh inary  Analysis, 
October 20. 1993  (ICC Documents, pp. 141~92). 
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Justice's opinion became known at the end of March 1994: the claim had 
not established an outstanding lawful obligation on the part of Canada to the 
First Nation, since the nonfuffilment of a treaty or agreement between the 
First Nation and the Crown had not been sh0wn.3~ Canada's position was that 
the Treaty 8 economic benefits could only be claimed once a band had made 
an election for reserve lands and chosen between agriculture and stock-rais- 
ing. No reserve lands had been set aside until after the 1986 Agreement;" 
and there was no evidence of an election by the Band between agriculture 
and stock-raising. However, since this was Canada's "preliminary" position, 
the Band was invited to submit additional evidence or argument. 

In April 1334, counsel for the First Nation rejected Canada's preliminary 
position and requested a meeting.33 It appears that the parties then met for 
discussions in Fort McMurray on June 15, 1994. Chief Archie Waquan later 
set out the Mikisew position in writing and requested another meeting with 
Specific Claims West to clear away any remaining "impediments" to the 
claim. Chief Waquan said he did not think that any further archival research 
into the First Nation's receipt of agricultural economic benefits would be 
necessary, since the setting aside of reserve lands, which had to happen 
before an election for agricultural benefits, had not taken place until after the 
1986 Agreement." 

Correspondence on November 9, 1994, refers to a research report com- 
missioned by Specific Claims West to determine the extent to which Treaty 8 
hands were provided with economic benefits.'' The draft of this report, enti- 
tled "Economic Benefits and Treaty No. 8 Bands in Alberta, 1899-1940," 

31 i\Um T h a n ,  Speciiic Cllims Wel, D m .  lo Jemme SLavik, Ackrqd, Piash. Roth &Day, Bvrislers & Solici- 
tors. Mvch 29. 19% (LCC Dacwnents. pp. 193.94). 

$2 See 1986 Agreement. 
33 Jerome Slank, hckroyd, Fiasta, Roth &Day, Blmsrers & Solidan, to A. Tallman. Speufic Oaim Wml, D m ,  

Apnl 11, 19% (ICC Documents, pp. 195-96). 
34 CbieIkchie Wquan, Mikisew Cree Fint Nation, to Manired klein, Spoci6c Wlims West, D M .  Jub 25, 1994 

(ICC Documenu. pp. 197-99. especially pangraph 9 a p. 199). 
35 Allan T h a n ,  Negotiator, Specific Wwns West, D m ,  to Jerome S h n k  Ackrayd, Piura, Rolh 8. Day. Buris- 

lets & Salieirors November 9, 1994. As well, Speci6c Claim W e  wrote lo the Executive Director of h e  
Athabasca Tnbal Corparatlw on December 8, 1994. advising that research on h e  f f l i e n t  of the economic 
benefirs pmvislona of Treaty 8 wls "eurrenlly welt undewp and bal  the Tnbd Corporation would be con- 
tacted once the research @per hd k e n  reviewed by SpeciGc Wairn~ West. Mmfred P. klein. Director, SptciGc 
Chims West. DWD, to Tony Punko, Executive Director, Alhab- Tribd Corporation, December 8, 1994 (ICC 
Docwnents, pp. 208-09). 

196 
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appears to have been circulated late in Janualy 1995.'6 Two letters explained 
why Specific Claims West had taken the position that the research was 
necessary: 

The research will focus on detenninjng whether there is evidence that individual 
bands made a request for particular economic benefits and evidence thal any eco- 
nomic benefits were delivered.)' 

The research is required because we want to deal dehitively with the issue and 
not have it drag on for years to come to the detriment of the First Nation and we want 
to ensure that we have a well documented file when it is submitted to the Department 
of Justice for rwiew and analysis.' 

Late in January 1995 the Director General of the Specific Claims Branch of 
DIAND wrote to the Director of Specific Claims West setting out the approach 
of the Branch to economic benefits under treaty: 

One of the responsibilities of this branch is to assure that the [Specific Claims] Policy 
is not used inappropriately. For example this Policy is not intended to be a source of 
funding for economic development, though a First Nation may well want to direct 
compensation for a claim towards investments which will improve the economic 
development opportunities of its members. 

. . . Ln the case of claims for economic benefits under treaty. . . [wle would 
require a demonstration that the benefits promised by treaty were requested by a First 
Nation at some point in histoty, and that the response(s) by Canada were of a kind 
which created an outstanding lawful obligation as may be assessed by DOJ [Depart- 
ment of Justice] under the criteria of the Policy. 

If the record shows that such benefits were never requested, and that what we are 
k i n g  is a firs1 t i e  request, DOJ will still assess in the usual way whether a lawful 
obligation under the Policy exists. The branch would not view such a claim as a high 
priority for the assignment of scarce time and resources, however. 

In either case 1 would expect DO] and ourselves, to assess the extent to which 
Canada's support to the claimant First Nation(s) over time has effectively met the 
objective of the treaty provision(s). If the treaties promise implements to assist the 

16 B. Poiyandi and T.M. Homtk. "Economic Benefits and Treaiy No. 8 Bands in Alberta. 1899.1940,'' drlh report 
prepared for Speciiic Claims West, January 9, 1995 (ICC Dscumenls, pp. 214-66). The ICC DocumenU include 
a Januaq 30, 1995, "without prejudice" covering leuer from DIAND, with neither the addressee nor the render 
indicated, but apparently meant to accompany copies of the drah version of the research report. The leaer 
specifies hat, unlike the d d l  repan, "[a1 final report would eonlain slatemenls which. . . have been confirmed 
~n the tusto"ca1 record. . . 3~he writer runits the purpose of the repon to the "provilsion ~flback~round 
inlomation to the Issue of the distribution of economic banefits to the First Nations which siened Treaw 8 in 
Albem" (ICC Documents, p. 267). 

37 Alan Tallman. Negotiator. Speclfic Claims West. D m ,  la Jerome Slavik, Ackroyd. Piarla, Roth & Day. Barns- 
terr & Soliciton, November 9, 1994 (ICC Documents. pp. 200-01). 

18 Manfred P. Klein, Director. DUND, to Jerome Slavik. Ackoyd, Rarta, Roth & Dav. Barrklerr & Sokitors, 
November 25. 1 9 4  (ICC Documents, p 202). 



transition to farming, for example, 1 think the record will show in most cases that 
Canada's support far exceeded a strict one-time provision of "cows and ploughs."'9 

The Director of Specific Claims West was authorized to share this letter with 
any interested First Nations repre~entatives.~~ 

In April 1395 a version of the January 1995 report was prepared by Spe- 
cific Claims West for the Mikisew Cree First Nation with the title "Economic 
Benefits and Treaty No. 8 Bands in Alberta, 1899-1940: The Crees of Fort 
C h i p e w  (Mikisew)." It seemed to confirm that the First Nation had not 
received any agricultural tools/implernents, livestock, or seed under 
Treaty 8.4' 

Early in May 1995, the First Nation's Chief asked for a decision on the 
negotiation of the First Nation's claim for economic benefits.4Vhe response 
from DL4ND was equivocal. That letter, dated June 12, 1995, and marked 
"without prejudice," included the following: 

It is our view that there may be an obligation under Treaty 8 to provide the artides as 
spec&d in Treaty 8 to the MCFN [Mikisew Cree First Nation]. We further believe that 
the obligation is limited to the actual items mentioned in the treaty and to the number 
of families actually senled on the reselve. 

As discussed. . . there are . . . two options available to the First Nation. The First 
Nation mdy pursue the speciGc claims process or can await Ule outcome of (andlor 
participate in) the developing Indian-Government process to determine how treaties 
should be understood and implemented in contemporary terms. 

Subject to your agreement to proceed and a formal letter accepting your claim 
from DIAND's Assistant Deputy Minister of Claims and Indian Government, the Spe- 
ciEc Claims Branch is prepared to enter into discussions concerning the First Nation's 
claim within the parameters of the Specific Claims Policy and DIAND's legal position. 
DIAND would view entering into discussion as part of unhished business arising 
from the First Nation's 1986 treaty land entitlement settlement. 

DIAND anticipates that any settlement reached under the Specific Claims Policy will 
bear a direct relationship to the actual benefits specified in the treaty. This approach 
is in accord with the legal position that the department has received with respect to 
the interpretation of the treaty positions. 

39 Rem W e s h d  Director General, Specilk Chins Branch. D m ,  to Manfred Klein, Director. Specific Clauns 
West. J a n u q  27, 1995 (KC Daewnenu. pp. 210-13). 

40 Rem Westhd, Dneclor Genenl. Specific Claims Branch. D M ,  to Madred Klein. Director. SpeclGc Claunr 
Wesl. D m ,  January 27. 15% (ICC Documem, pp. 110-13). 

41 "Economic Benefits and T r e q  No. 8 Bands in Albew, 189-1940: The Crees of Fon Chipearan (MMrew): 
April 1995 (ICC Docmenrs, pp. 273401). 

12 Chid Archie Waquan, Mihsew Cree First Nation, lo Rem Weitland, D L W ,  May 5 ,  1 9 5  (ICC Documenlr. p. 
402) 
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To reiterate, your alternative is to participate in the planned treaty policy develop- 
ment process and to help determine in that context how economic benefit provisions 
of treaties might be assessed on a contemporary basis. If your expectation exceeds 
what could be provided under a specihc claim (in return for a lull release), it may be 
more appropriate for your First Nation to await the outcome of the treaties review 
p~ocess.~' 

The patties met on July 25, 1995, to discuss the claim. DIAND again stated 
its offer to negotiate the claim, still subject to the conditions set out in the 
June 12, 1995, letter. The Band was asked to confirm that its members 
wished to proceed under the specific claims process and was told that an 
"acceptance package" would then be prepared. DIAND stated that any settle- 
ment "[would] have to bear a direct relationship to the actual benefits speci- 
fied in the Treaty" and therefore would not follow the approach taken to 
value the economic benefits in other bands' treaty land entitlement 
 settlement^.^^ 

In August 1995 the First Nation gave written contitmation that it wished to 
negotiate settlement of the claim "pursuant to the economic benefits provi- 
sions of Treaty 8, as set out in our Statement of Claim."4j Correspondence 
over the next six months included a December 1995 letter from the First 
Nation asking what the status was of the promised acceptance package, a 
Januaty 1996 letter from the First Nation requesting a meeting to obtain a 
"clear and straight answer" why the First Nation's claim was not being 
accepted for negotiation, and, finally, a Februaty 1996 letter from the Spe- 
cific Claims Branch saying that the "acceptance package" was in abeyance, 
since DIAND was reviewing the "whole issue of the entitlement to the eco- 
nomic benefits of Treaty No. 8 and other similar treaties. . . from a policy 
perspective." That letter stated that a decision was anticipated within the next 
three  month^.'^ 

43 Rem Westiand. Director tienen* Specific Claims Bnneh. D W D ,  to Chief .uchie Waquan. Mikirew Cree First 
Xxtian, June 12, 1995 (1CC Dacumenls, pp. 412-13). 

44 Manfred P. Klein. Director lSpedic Claims West!. D m ,  to Chief Archie Waquan, M h e w  Cree First Nation, 
.August 2, I995 (ICC Documinls, pp. 418-19). 

4: Cluef kch ie  Waquan. Mikirew Cree Fist  Nation, to Manfred Klein, Spectfic Claims West OL4ND. August 17,  
1 9 5  (1CC Documenlr, p 420) 

r6 Jerome Shvik Ackroyd. Piasta. Roth & Day, Barrlsiers B Sdicilos,  to ,Mike Boulime, h d n g  Director. Treaty 
Land Enutlementr. DLAND, December 19. 1995 (ICC Dacumenl., p. 423). Chief Archie Waqwn. Mikirew Cree 
Fist  Nnion, to Scon Serron, DLAND, January 22, 1996 (ICC Documenl.. p p  424.25) Mike Bouliane. Specific 
Claims Branch, D U W ,  to Jerome Slavik, kkrayd, Piuta, Roth & Day, Blmsten and Solicitors. F e b r u q  7, 
1 9 6  (ICC Documens, p. 426). 



INDIAN C L A I M S  C O M M I S S I O N  PROCEEDINGS 

PART I11 

ISSUES 

The claim submitted by the Mikisew Cree First Nation to the Minister raised 
two issues: (1) whether, under Treaty 8, there was an existing and outstand- 
ing lawful obligation on the part of Canada to provide economic benefits to 
the First Nation; and (2) the nature and value of any such outstanding bene- 
fits. Since, at the date of this report, the Minister has agreed to negotiate the 
claim, there has been no Commission inquiry into either issue. We make no 
findings of fact or any comment on the merits of the First Nation's claim for 
economic benefits under Treaty 8. This report has set out the background to 
the First Nation's claim, based on documents the First Nation provided. 

The Commission's authority to conduct an inquiry into this claim was 
challenged by Canada, and this preliminary question was considered by the 
Commission. The Commission concluded that it had the authority to conduct 
an inquiy in these circumstances. Part N of the report outlines the positions 
of the parties and the Commission's decision. 
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PART IV 

THE COMMISSION'S AUTHORITY TO CONDUCT AN INQUIRY 

As discussed above, the parties disagreed whether the facts of this case met 
the threshold for the Commission to conduct an inquiry. The question was 
whether the First Nation's claim had been rejected by the Minister. The 
claimant asked the Commission to conclude that DIAND's conduct in the 
three years since the First Nation submitted its claim was tantamount to a 
re~ect ion .~~ 

In March 1996, the Commission advised Canada that the First Nation had 
requested an inquiry." In June 1996, Justice wrote to the Commission, 
explaining how Canada regarded the progress of the claim.4' This letter 
asserted that the Band had been informed that D M D  was prepared to rec- 
ommend negotiation of the claim under the Specific Claims Policy. Moreover, 
since the Band disputed DIAND's "narrow and literal interpretation of the 
provisions of Treaty 8,"50 the letter argued that the real issue was the differ- 
ent interpretations that each party had of Treaty 8 (rather than whether to 
negotiate at all). Counsel for Canada stated: 

Canada does not agree or admit that the claim has been rejected. The claimant has 
been advised that the acceptance of the claim for negotiation has been postponed 
pending the results of'a review of the issue from a policy perspective. The matter is 
still under review." 

47 Jerome Slavik, Ackroyd, Fiuta, Roth &Day, Bmisters & Soiicitorr, to the Indian Clims Commirnon, Februaq 
2'3, 1996 (ICC Documents, pp. 427-28). 

ns Ran S. Mawice, Commission Counsel, Indian Cl-s Commission, to Mke Badiane, Acting Direclor General, 
Specific Clims Branch. and to W. Ulios, Senior General Counsel, D m ,  legal Senices, March 5. 1996 (ICC 
Doemenls. oo. 435-34). . , ,  - 
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A planning conference for the Commission's inquiry into the First Nation's 
claim was held June 14, 1996. The First Nation had requested that a meeting 
with DIAND take place before the conference, in order to discuss the Depart- 
m t ' s  "policy and approach" in the matter, or to discuss the stage reached 
in the Department's policy development on the issue of economic benefits 
 claim^.'^ In reply, the Specific Claims Branch confirmed that the acceptance 
package was being "held in abeyance pending a review of the issue by the 
department from a policy perspective" and that the review had not been com- 
pleted within the three additional months as anticipated on February 7, 
1996.j3 

In another letter, dated June 27, 1936, the Specific Claims Branch said 
that DIAND would not be able to announce its decision prior to July 31, 
1936, but consideration of the claim was "ongoing." The First Nation's claim 
had not been rejected under the Specific Claims Policy; therefore, the Depart- 
ment was "unable to agree that [the] claim be 'deemed' rejected for the 
purposes of an inquily by the Co~nmission."~~ On July 16, 1996, after the 
p l a n ~ n g  conference, the Commission asked the parties to make written sub- 
missions on the question of the commission's authority to proceed with the 
inquity." 

Before any submissions were received, the Director General of Specific 
Claims Branch wrote to the Chief of the Mikisew Cree First Nation suggesting 
that, since the internal policy paper had been completed, nothing should 
hold up the review of the claim: 

[Ilt is my intention to have the issues raised by your specific claim considered by the 
Senior Policy Cornmiltee at a September meeting. Once we have obtained instmctions, 
we shwld be in a position to resume and complete our review of your specific claim 
and advise wherher we are prepared to enter into settlement negotiations pursuant to 
the S@ Claims Policy. 

51 Jermne Shvik, Ackrayd, Piasa, Roth & Day, to Michel Ray. D M ,  May 28, 1996 (ICC Documents, pp. 457 
FRI 

j3 je&e SLvlk, kkroyd, Piarn, Roth & Day, to Michel Fa", D W ,  May 28, 1996 (1CC Docwnenls, pp 457- 
58). Michel ROY. Director General. SoeeiRc Claims Branch. to Chief Archie Wmum. Mikisew Cree First Nation. . . 
June 14, IB~ ' ( ICC Dacumenls. p. 475). 

54 Michel Roy. Director General. Specific Ckmr Branch, D m ,  to Jerome Slavik. ckroyd, Piasta, Roth & Day. 
Banliters & Soliciton, June 27. 1996 (ICC Documens, pp. 481-82). 

15 Is= Cros-louir hhenakew, Associate Legal Counsel, Indian Claims Co<~tmission, to Jemme Slavik Ackroyd, 
Piun, RMh and Day. Barrisrers & Solintors, and to Francoks Dugie, Counrel, Specific Clzkms Ottaw, DkND 
Legal Services, JuLy 16, 1996 (ICC Documenu. p p  491-92). 
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. . . let me reiterate that the daim has not been rejected by Canada. We continue 
to work steadily toward our goal of resolving the outstanding policy issues raised by 
your spec& claim." 

THE FIRST NATION'S POSITION 

The Mikisew Cree First Nation maintained that the Commission's mandate did 
extend to the particular facts surrounding the First Nation's specific claim.j7 
Within the limits of the constituting Order in Council, it argued, the Commis- 
sion is an investigative body with the discretion to decide its own jurisdiction 
and procedures. In particular, the Commission could determine what 
amounted to a "rejection" of a claim as contemplated by the phrase "already 
rejected by the Minister," that is, according to the Terms of Reference. 

Aside from verbal or written rejections of a claim, a person could con- 
clude that a party had expressed its rejection by "action, inaction, or other 
conduct, such as the refusal or inability to make a decision . . . within a rea- 
sonable period of time, which is tantamount to a rejection, despite claims to 
the contrary." The First Nation argued that, even where no statutory time limit 
is placed on a Crown decision maker, previous court decisions indicate that 
the Crown's decision must be made within a reasonable time. 

Counsel for the claimant argued that DIAND had already concluded that 
agricultural and fanning entitlements had not been provided to the Mikisew 
Cree First Nation: 

After extensive research, DlAND concluded in 1994. . . these entitlements were not 
provided to the MCFN: This hding should have vely promptly led to an acknowledge- 
ment of an outstanding lawful and fiducialy obligation. Yet, aker 3 112 years, DIAND 
has refused to acknowledge a lawful obligation in this matter. They have refused to 
either accept a lawful obligation, enabling the claim to proceed to negotiation, or 
outright reject the claim, thus allowing our client to proceed with alternative reme- 
dies, whether in court or before the ICC.'8 

Although the Crown must be given a reasonable time to assess its lawful 
obligation to the First Nation, in this case the policy issues which were 
explained as the reason for the government's delay in deciding whether to 

16 Michel Roy, Director Ceneml, Specific Claims Branch. DWM), to Chief Archte Waquan. Milasew Cree First 
Nalion. July 31. 1996 (ICC Documenli, pp. 519-20). 

57 Jerome Slavlk, hckrogd, Prast%. Roth & Dag. Barrislers &Solicitors, to Ron Maurice, lndian Clvms Commission. 
.4ugurt 15. I996 (ICC D~unlencr.  pp. 556.64). 

is  Jerme Slavik, Ackrovd, Piasla, Roth & Dav, Barristers & Solicitors, to Ron Maurice, Indian Clvmr Commiirion, 
.4uguu li. 1996 (ICC Documenls. pp. 556-64). 
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negotiate the claim (the first stage of the process) should have been left to 
the next stage of the process. In other words, determining the settlement 
value of the claim was irrelevant to the question whether a "lawful obliga- 
tion" existed. 

The First Nation concluded that "the unwillingness, inability, and refusal 
[of the Minister] to decide, when combined with the extensive delay and 
other conduct of the Crown in this matter, [were] a breach of fiduciary con- 
duct and obligation," and were tantamount to a rejection of the First Nation's 
claim by Canada. 

CANADA'S POSITION 

The starting point for Canada's written argument was that the Commission's 
role was "fundamentally linked and limited to reviewing Canada's application 
of the Specific Claims Policy" and that the question of the Commission's man- 
date to consider the First Nation's claim had to be considered in light of that 
limited role.59 Canada emphasized that in this case there was no documentary 
basis for concluding that the Mikisew Cree First Nation's claim had been 
rejected.60 

Counsel for Canada argued that the relevant documentary evidence, which 
covered the period January 1993 to July 31, 1996, clearly showed that the 
First Nation's claim had not been rejected. What that correspondence did 
show was that Canada had not yet completed its review of the First Nation's 
claim; therefore, Canada had not decided whether to accept or reject the 
claim for negotiation. 

Since the First Nation had made submissions to the Minister following the 
March 1994 letter outlining Canada's preliminary position, this action 

59 Suhmission~ on Behall of !he Government of Canada with Respect to the Mandate of the Indian Claims Cammio- 
sion, August I ,  IW6 (ICC Dwumenls, pp. 530-38). 

64 C m d z  also distinguished h e  mandale challenge in this Mikisew case from that i~ the 1% Ia Ronge Candle 
Lake and k h a r l s  inauirv, where rhe Cammission relied on carresoondence kom D m  that had been milten 
in the conte* of t i k t i i  as evidence of he reiection 01 a claim, i n  h e  hc h Ronge Inquiw. the government 
had ukon he ponu;n &LI unlerr ru~ccimn had l a k n  place u u h ~ n  the :onas1 oi ihe ipedr cl&r prozejr 
.I U C L I ~  n u  ix a rele;uun whrh u x  uuhul h e  Commtrr~on, Tcrrns dRdecencc IJhough rhe r:lwnr in lwLe 
h3a heen e~dodv releaed. m umlnu. b h e  Sener Uqnun! D e n ~ n  Cl~n~rler of D k \ D  (he cowrnmenl$ - ,  ~ ~ " ~~~~~~~~ ~ 

noition &;hat ihisi ; iaci io~" war & d e  the " & e s s ~ h e  eovekment llso areued that the soecilic 
process o u l d  nor'qerate while a dain &he subject oractive litigation, which "war the case f i r  b a h  

of the claims. h the decision, on hehlY ol  h e  Commissioners. Justice Rohen Reid expained that the Cmmis- 
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eomidrred to fd Hnthin it are disposed of lairiy." The decision war thzt the Commirrian did have the authority 
to consider the claims (ICC Dacwnem. pp. 403-10). 
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showed that the claimant never believed the claim had been rejected. The fact 
that there had been later meetings between the parties, and that the claimant 
had submitted additional evidence and arguments, also confirmed the ongo- 
ing renew of the claim. 

Canada argued that the "mandate" dispute between the parties did not 
have to do with a "rejection" of the claim; instead, Canada said that the First 
Nation was objecting to the time that DIAND had taken to respond to the 
claim. On February 7, 1996, the First Nation was told that review of the claim 
had been delayed while the Department conducted a policy review of treaty 
entitlements. The First Nation was also told that Specific Claims intended to 
complete the review as soon as possible, probably within three months. How- 
ever, instead of waiting the three months, the First Nation had requested that 
the Commission conduct an inquiry. Since January 1993, when the claim was 
Bled, there had been "numerous" meetings between the parties, and research 
and other reports had been obtained and shared with the First Nation. Even 
11 months after August 1995, the evidence was that Canada was actively 
reviewing the claim; the Specific Claims Branch was "fully committed to 
completing its review. 

In conclusion, Canada argued that the facts showed that the claim had 
been, and still was, under active consideration. The Specific Claims Branch 
had continued to state that it was committed to having the First Nation's claim 
reviewed by senior department officials. DIAND's conduct, therefore, could 
not be seen as inaction tantamount to a rejection of the First Nation's claim. 

THE COMMISSION'S DECISION 

The Commission's decision to conduct an inquiry into the First Nation's claim 
was set out in a letter dated November 18, 1996 (attached as Appendix A to 
this report). It stated that the issue to be determined was whether D W s  
delay was tantamount to a rejection of the First Nation's claim. The history of 
the claim, including the main events and correspondence from January 1993 
to July 24, 1996, was summarized. The letter concluded: 

Mer considering the nature of the issues involved and the amount of time that this 
claim has been under review by the Specific Claims Branch, Co-Chair Bellegarde con- 
cluded that Canada has had sufficient l i e  to determine whether an outstanding "law- 
lul obligation" is owed to the [First Nation]. Under the circumstances, he considered 
the lengthy delay as being tantamount to a rejection of the claim for the purposes of 
determining whether [the Commissionersl have authority to proceed with an inquity 
under their terms of reference. . . . Furthermore, the inquiry has been scheduled in 



such a manner as to provide Canada with additional time to respond to the merits of 
the daim before proceeding with written and oral submissions. If Canada decides to 
accept the claim, it will not be necessary for the Commission to complete the inquily. 

. . . It is sipficant that the Specific Claims Branch initially offered to enter into 
negotiations with the Mikisew Cree First Nation under the policy on June 12, 
1995 . . .Over seventeen months have passed and Canada has yet to respond to a 
discrete legal question, namely, whether the Mikisew Cree First Nation received any of 
the economic entitlements promised under Treaty 8. . . . 

. . . The claimant has provided enough information for Canada to make a decision 
and, indeed, no further requests for information have been made by Canada. Since 
Canada refused to provide a cenain date within which to respond and has not offered 
any valid explanation for the delay, other than to say that it is under active review, it is 
justifiable to conclude that a seventeen month delay is tantamount to a tejection of the 
claim for the purposes of responding to the Mikisew Cree First Nation's request for an 

A Commission community session was scheduled for November 26, 1996. 
On November 20, 1996, the Commission received word that Canada had 
accepted the claim for neg~tiation:~ and the community session was can- 
celled. Canada's formal offer to negotiate was dated December 16, 1996.63 A 
meeting between the parties was planned for February 3, 1997." As a result, 
the Commission has suspended this inquiry. 

POSTSCRIFT 

On December 20, 1996, in the period between Canada's December 16, 1996, 
offer to negotiate the First Nation's claim and the scheduled February 3, 
1997, meeting, the First Nation began a lawsuit in the Alberta courts against 
Canada and the Province of Alberta. This Litigation was filed by a firm other 

61 Ran S. Maurice, Commlss~on Counsel, Indim Claims Commission, to Jerome Sllvik Ackoyd. Piasla, Roth & 
[kv. 8-ters & Salidtocr. and to F m c o i s  Daide. Counsel, S~ecific Claims Ottawa. November 18. 1996. See 
.4ppec&t .I 
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Waquan, Mikisew Cree First Nauon. December 16. 1996 (Appendk A). 

63 John Sinclair. ksistml Depuly Minister, D m ,  to Chief &hie Waqum, W2lkirew Cree First Nztfon, December 
16. 1996. 

64 I& (6. Secdor Negaiizcor. SpenGc Claims Branch, D M ,  to Jerome Slavrk, Ackrayd, F'iasa, Roth & Dav. 
Bmisters & SOIicitors. Januaq 17. 1997. 
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than the one handling the economic benefits claim.6' The lawsuit alleges that 
the federal Crown and its representatives engaged in misrepresentation, 
intentional concealment of the facts, fraud, and other behaviour in breach of 
fiduciary obligations in the negotiation of Treaty 8, that both the federal and 
provincial Crowns are in breach of the terms of Treaty 8, that both the fed- 
eral and provincial Crowns engaged in misrepresentation, intentional con- 
cealment of the facts, fraud, and other behaviour in breach of fiduciary obli- 
gations in the negotiation of the 1986 Agreement, and that both the federal 
and provincial Crowns are in breach of the 1986 Agreement. In particular, 
this Statement of Claim seeks general and aggravated damages (each in the 
amount of one billion dollan), an order of specific performance in accor- 
dance with the terms of Trealy 8, and a declaration that the Treaty 8 obliga- 
tion to provide lands to the First Nation is in fact an obligation in perpetuity. 

In light of this lawsuit, Canada has declined to negotiate the First Nation's 
claim for economic benefjts, at least untii the implications of the lawsuit have 
been "Fully analyzed." At the date of this report, the Commission understands 
that Canada and the First Nation have not begun negotiating the First Nation's 
claim for economic benefits. 

6 i  Chie/Axhie W#quan u. ffa~erMaje$ty lhe Queen (Cananoh andAlberla), .Acdan No. %0l-18174. Alberta Courl 
of Queen's Bench, Judicid District of Calgaq, filed and issued & Rlth & Cmpany. Barristers & SoUcilorr, 
Pnddhi, Alberta, December 24, 1996. 
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PART V 

CONCLUSION 

In light of Canada's offer to accept the Mikisew Cree First Nation's claim for 
negotiation under the Specific Claims Policy, it is no longer necessary for an 
inquiry to be held into this matter. In making th report, we wish to affirm 
that it is essential that process and systemic issues in the specific claims 
process, such as the development of government policy regarding a certain 
category of claim, not be allowed to frustrate the timely acceptance or rejec- 
tion for negotiation of individual claims, or frustrate the timely negotiation 
and settlement of those claims that have been accepted by Canada for negoti- 
ation. At a minimum, delay must be explained by something more than an 
assertion that a claim is "under active review," and projected completion 
dates should he met, or, at the least, failure to meet those dates must be 
explained in a meaningful manner. Just as fairness was the criterion gov- 
erning the decision to conduct a Commission inquiry into the First Nation's 
claim, fairness to the parties must be the criterion that guides the conduct of 
either party seeking the resolution of a First Nation's claim. 

FOR THE INDIAN CLAIMS COMMISSION 

Daniel J. Bellegarde P.E. James Prentice, QC Carole T. Corcoran 
Commission Co-Chair Commission Co-Chair Commissioner 

Dated this 27th day of March 1997 
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APPENDIX A 

lndina CIninr 
CO., .I." 

C o n a k i m  
der r~vcndlcatlanr % 
&r lndhnr 

November 18, 1996 
", P 
$ ,- 

Mr. JcromeN. Siavik 
$ 

Via fax: 6091423.8946 
Aclimyd, Pimta, Roth & Day 
Bmirters & Solieiton 
Fifteenth Floor 
Pint Edmonton Place 
10665 -Jasper Avenue 
Edmonton, Alberta 
TSJ 3S9 

- And - 
Mr Francois Daigie Via far: 613-991-5057 
Counsel, Specific Claims Ottawa 
DIAND Legal Services 
1157 - 473 Alben Street 
Ottawa, Ontano 
KIA OH8 

Dew Sirs: 

\~IUIP" c r e u $ r  U.,tion IT~~~~nt3e~o~H~n.ul 
Our File: 2lOii.il.02 

I am writing in ~egard to Canada's challenge ro the mandate of the Commission to 
conduct an inquiry i t to this matter Further to my vernal cammunicatian on 
September 17, 1996, Co-Chair Dan Bellegardc has cacefuily considered tho written 
submissions of the parries and decided to proceed with the inquiry as requested by 
the Milasew Cree First Nation (MCFN). 

While due regard lbas been paid to the submissions of the parties, the pilnciplc of 
fairness war the governing factor in the decislon ta proceed with the inquiry. 
After considering the nature of the issues involved and the amount of time thar this 
claim has been under review by the Specific Claims Bmch,  Co-Chair Beilegarde 
concluded that Canada has had sufficient time to determine whether an auutanding 
"lawful obligation" is owed to the MCFN. Under the circumstances, he colwidered 
the lengthy delay as being tanurnaunt to a rejection of the claim for the purposes 
of dcteminiog whether they have authority to proceed with an inquiry under their 
terms of reference. He aiso felt that it would be unfair and prejudicial ro the 

E n l w *  8aldmu Su11 e00 - t 2 l o u r i i  #u Loun#i i i r  'us8 
cAm- PO RldC I' ,730 SlollOniiurruniti'U'.Ollou# Canad. I(II'1<2 

Ta116131943-2131 Far t O i i l 9 4 d l - f l I i i  
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MCFN if thev did not omceed with the inquirv because this could effectively . . 
deprive the MCFN from having its claim reviewed by an independent third party 
Furthermore, the inquiry has been scheduled in such a manner as to provide 
Canada with additional time to respond to the merits of the claim before 
proceeding with written and oral submissions. If Canada decides to accept the 
claim, it will not be necessary for the Commission to complete the inquiry. 

The chronology of this claim and the detailed reasons for the decision are set out 
below. 

1. January, 1993 - MCFN files specific claim to economic entitlements under 
Treaty 8 to Specific Claims West (SCW). 

2. October 20, 1993 - SCW forwards a discussion paper providing Canada's 
preliminary analysis of the claim to Mr. Slavk. 

3 .  March 29, 1994 - Allan Tallman, SCW advised Mr. Slavik that Canada's 
prelkinary position is that the claim does not establish an outstanding 
lawful obligation on the part of Canada. Canada offers MCFN oppormnity 
to provide additional evidence or written arguments to be taken into 
consideration. 

4. July 15, 1994 - Parties meet to discuss Canada's preliminary position and 
new arguments are presented to SCW by the MCFN. Following this 
meeting, SCW aereed to conduct research inta the implementation of the 
agricul~&d and Farming provisions of Treaty 8. 

5. January 30, 1995 - SCW circulates copy of draft report entitled "Economic 
Benefits and Treaty No. 8 Bands in Alberta 1899-1940" 

6.  May 5, 1995 - Chief Waquan wrote to Rem Westland, Director General, 
Specific Claims Branch (SCB) seeking decision an the claim. 

7. June 12, 1995 - Letter from Rem Westland to Chief Waquan on a "without 
prejudice" basis acknowledging that "there may be an obligation under 
Treaw 8 to wovide the articles soecified in Treaw 8 to the MCFN." Mr. 
\Vestland .>ffemd !he fnllow~ng :no oplluns to the \KFS on how ', 
p m r e l .  ' h e  hlCFN may pLrjuc the spcc~fi: cl3im.i pro;r.i> t lr  a n  ~ u ~ l t  
the outcome of (mdlot p&Cipate in) the developing ~ndian-~ovemment 
process to determine how treaties should be undentood and implemented in 
contemporary terms. Subject to your agreement and a Formal letter 
accepting your claim from DIAND's Assistant Deputy Minister of Claims 



and Indian Governmen& the Specific Claims Branch is prepared to enter 
into discussions concerning the Fint Nation's claim within the parameters 
of the Specific Claims Policy and DIAND's legal position." 

8. August 2, 1995 - Letter fmm Manfred Klein, SCW, to Chief Waquan 
confuming that SCW would be prepared to negotiate a claim with MCFN 
subject to the canditions set out in the June 12th letter. 

9. August 17, 1995 - Letter fmm Chief Waquan to Manfred Klein indicating 
the MCEN is prepared to eotef into negotiations for settlement of the 
specific claim. 

10. December 19, 1995 - Mr. Slavik requests response from acting Director 
Genml, Mike Bouliane, regarding the statos of "acceptance package" of the 
claim. 

I I. January 22, 1996 - Letter fmm Chief Waquan to Deputy Minister Scott 
Senan requesting meeting to discuss why the claim had not been accepted. 
Chief Waquan states that Mr. Bouliaoe advised the MCFN before Christmas 
that consideration of the claim had been upheld "for a number of so-called 
policy reasons" and that Mr. Bouliane had expressed concerns regarding the 
"precedent affect" and the potential "cost to Canada" if the claim were 
accepted for negotiation 

I 2  F e b m q  7, 1996 - Letter from Mike Bouliane to Chief Waquan stating that 
the "arocessine of the acceotance oackaee is beine held in abeyance" while 

expected a decision h* the department within a period of three months 

13. February 23, 1996 -Letter from Jemme Slavik to the Indian Claims 
Commission requesting an inquiry into "deemed rejection" of the claim. 

14. June 12, 1996 - Letter from Francnis Daigle to Isa Gros-Louis Ahenakew, 
KC,  objecting to the Commission pmceedmg with the inquiry because 
"Canada does~not agree or admit that the claim had been rejected." 

15. June 14, 1996 - A t  ICC Planning Conference in Ottawa, Ftancois Daigle 
objects to mandate of Commission to proceed with inquiry. In a letter on 
that date. Mr. Michel Rov. Director General of Suecific Claims Branch. , . 
reiterated that the review of the claim had been ':held in abeyance pending 
a review of the issue by the department from a policy perspective. 
Altkolreh the intation was to comolete the review within three months. 
circmitances have not allowed us'to do so." Mr. Roy advised that hewas 
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"fully committed to having it reviewed by senior officials of the 
department." 

16. June 27, 1996 - Letter fmm Michel Roy to Jemme Slavik responding to 
proposal made d u ~ g  the June 14th Planning Conference. Mr. Roy states 
that '"Unfortunately, this Depamnent is not in a position to advke before 
July 31, 1996 whether your client's claim will or will not be accepted for 
negotiation pursuant to the Specific Claims Policy. We are also unable to 
a p e  that tltis claim be 'deemed' rejected for the purposes of an inquiry by 
the Indian Claims Cammissbn." Mr. Ray reiterated that the claim was 
under active consideration by the departmeat 

17. July 24, 1996 - Letter from Chief Waquan to Michel Roy stating that the 
MCFN was "disappointed" that after three and a half years DIAND was 
continuing to pmcrastimte and delay acceptance of the claim. 

POSITIONS OF TEE PARTIES ON TILE MANDATE OF TBE COMMISSION 

In Canada's written submissions dated Auyst I, 1996 Mr. Dagle submitted that 
the question of whether the Commission has a mandate to conduct an inquiry into 
this claim could be determined on a preliminary basis since the issue of rejection is 
not inextricably tied to the substantive aspects of the claim. For the purposes of 
determining this preliminaty qustian, Mr. Daigle stated that the Commission 
cannot "deem" a claim Lo be rejected, rather, the relevant question is "whether 
Canada's conduct is tantamount to a rejection." In Canada's submission, it is not. 

Mr. Daide orovided a brief recitation of the temw; of reference contained in the - .  
Order in Council establishing the Commission and the salient faets in suppan of 
his assenion that the Cammissionerr do not have a mandate to proceed with an 
i n g u i ~  into this matter because it has not been reiected. Mr. Daiale referred to 
iwb pieviaus decisions of the Commission to with inquiries (the Athabasca 
Denemline and the Lac La Range Indian Band) as suppar? for the view that there 
must be a "rejection of the claim an its merits" before the Commission can 
pmceed with an inquiry. While Mr. Daigle acknowledged that Canada's 
preliminary review of the claim in March 1994 did not disclose an outstanding 
lawful obligation, he stated that further evidencc and argamenu have been 
oresented fo the Deoartment and no decision has been made conclusivelv one way 
or another. The clux of Canada's argument is that the claim has simply not been 
rejected. According Lo Mr. Daigle, "DIAND has not completed its review of the 
claim and has not vet determined whether. on its merits, the claim should be 
accepted or reject& pursuant to the Specific Claimr ~ o l i c ~ . "  

The Mikisev Cree Fint Nation's position is sst out ina  letter from Mr. Jerome 
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Slavik to the writer dated August 15, 1996. Mr. Slavik asserts that there is ample 
case authoriw to suppart the view that administrative bodies created under statute 
have the req"l,Lte aulh*riol and discrctton to make dec~s8oht with respect ro thcnr 
jlmsdcl!on. subject to judictal renew of such 3eclslons. Wlule the Commlsjlun 
,nus# iat!stt uself hat a claim has becn rcjccrcd by the Minister bcfore I[ can 
~mceed with an lnauirv into the claim. Mr. ~ l a v i  asserts that the ICC has the . . 
authority to determine what constitutes a "rejection". Aside from an express 
rejection in writing or verbally, Mr. Slavik suggests that a rejection can be based 
on "the action. in&on. or other conduct. suchk  the refusal or inabilih, to make a 
decision of the Crown within a reasonable period of time, which is tan&unt to a 
rejection, despite claims to the heonha~y." 

Mr. Slavik stated that where a claim has been before the Crown for a reasonable 
period of time and no decision has been made, it is necessary to conclude at some 
point that the claim has essentially been reiected in order ta allow the First Nation 
io oursue other alternatives. ~l th&eh noidirectlv a~~ l i cab le  to the oarticular facts 
mi circumstances before the codssian, Mr. ~ i a &  referred to t&e cases 
dealing with applications for mandamto to compel a public authority to make a 
decisian. In &tin v. Minister of Consumer and  omo or ore ~ffnirs11986). 12 - ~ .. 
CPR (3d) 190, the cam held that, despite the absence of a statutory time limit, an 
authority under a legal duty to make a decision must do so within a reasonable 
oeriod of time. ln Rknmozer v. Minister of  Emolovment. 119851 2 FC 315 the , . .  . . 
ioun ~iiurrl an drdcr ul'monJumu; requlnng ~har me Jepamcnt m&r. 1 de;i,l,~n 
on in irm~igratit,n application by 3 cenain dare While the ;oun :oblJ ih,r o rSr  
the deoartment to decide the outcome in a oarticular manner. it could issue 
mandomu owlng to thc lengthy Jelay in m h g  the decalon a d  rite abwn~c  11 
m ddequ?rc explvlat~ox~ for the delay. Finally, Mr. Slavlk :,red Ermtnrrkin Rnnf 
Counnl v Rrnrrnor i,ilnd#on n n l  .Vo'orrlzern Aflb,rr I19871 2 ChZR 71) whcrr the 
court found Gat the ~eeistrar was under a sfarutorv dutv make a decision in " , . 
regard to a membership protest filed by the Band. Mr. Justice Strayer stated that 
"Mile there har been no express rejection of this demand, more than enough time 
has ~ossed for o resclonse and none kar been fort he om in^. Tkir is tantamount to o - 
refusal to decide." Therefore, Strayer J. concluded that by "refusing or failing to 
give a decision on either of these protests, the Registrar is preventing an appeal to 
a court at his internretation of the law. I am not able to conclude that Parliament 
intended such a result." In Ermineskin, the delay involved was slightly less than 
two years h m  the time when the Band filed its tint objection to the Registrar. 
Mr. Slavik submined that the facts in this case are similar because the MCFN 
might be deprived of an apporm~ty to have the claim rcviewed by the 
Commission given that the mandate expires an March 31, 1997. 
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THE COMMISSIONERS' REASONS 

As mentioned mviouslv. the Commission has decided to oroceed with an inauin, ~- ~~~~ ~-~~~~ . ~~ , . . . 
into this matter. However, oral submissions will be scheduled to prnceed no 
earlier than January of 1997. T ~ n g  into account the case authorities cited above 
it is clear that while thev have no i rect  aodication because the Commission . . 
cannot provide discretionary remedies l i e  a ccoua of equity, they are instructive on 
the question of whether Canada's delay in responding to the merits of the claim is 
mt&ount  to a reiection. huther su&rt for the decision to proceed with the 
inquiry on accouni of lengthy delay can be found in the following authorities. 

In Re Fn'endr of Oldmn River Societv (1993). 105 DLR (4th) 444 (F.C.T.D.) the . . . . 
court offered its views on what constiluted a reasonable period of time for a 
decision to be exercised under statute. The court held that the complexity of the 
subject matter hns a direct bearing on whether there has been unreasonable delay 
under the circumstances. The court declined to order mnndamur to com~el  the 
Minister of Transport to implement the recommendations of an envimnmental 
assessment panel since only 14 months had lapsed since the release of the panel's 
reoort and ~ecommendations. The court held &at there had been no unreasonable 
delay but remained scized of the matter to ensure that some forward progress rvas 
achieved. 

In R v. Shpleton (1983), 6 DLR (4th) 191 (N.S.C.A.) -- a Cha&i case involving 
an application to have criminal charges dismissed on the grounds that there had 
been unreasonable delay in bringing the maner to trial -- the court held that 
prejudice was a relevant factor in determining whether there was unreasonable 
delay. Also, the court stated that what consti~tes a reasonable time depends on 
the circumstances. 

In Re Delmar and Vancouver Stock Exchonge (1994). 119 DLR (4th) 136 (RCSC) 
the court dealt with an application for prohibition and certiorari challenging the 
iucisdictian of the Vancauvcr Stack Exchange 10 proceed with disciplinary - .  
proceedings against the applicant. While a great deal of curial deference will be 
shown to bodies such as the Stock Exchange because of the highly specialized 
nature of the functions it eerfoms, this case seems to sumest that the coults are . . 
ncne-3 I" i l t laart  lo ,-! prc,>&mve rclieiid~tn.d ihc :cc!ilans o i  trlb 1 r ~ 5  dnc 
sdm.~nlsinu,i: M t s .  Ilthouqh lt I, acknuule.lp~l l l u ~  l b i i  :are .c not 4~cc t . )  :,(I 

point, i t  provides support for the view tlwt the Commission can determine whether 
unreasonable delay is rantamount to a rejection of claim and that such decisions 
will genenerally be respected by the courts. 

The Commissian decided to proceed with the inqui~y because Canada has had a 
reasonable period of time to respond to the merits of the claim. It 1s significant 
that the Specific Claims Branch initially offered to enter into negotiations with the 
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MCFN under the policy on June 12, 1995 subject to a formal letter of acceptvce 
from DIAND Assistant DeouN Minister of Claims. Over seventeen months have . . 
passed and Canada has yet to respond to a discrete legal question, namely, whether 
the MCFN received any of the economic entitlements promised under Treaty 8. 
While the Commissioa aooreciates that there are intemretive auestians relatine to . . " 
the nahlre and scope of the treaty right, these issues are mare properly the subject 
matter of settlement discussions. 

The simole auestion is whether there are unfulfilled heaN oblieations within the . . > 

meaning of the Specific Claims Policy. Canada's delay in responding to the merits 
of this ciaim is not warranted under the circumstances because the delay appears to 
be related to issues which are exrraomus to whether Canada has fulfilled its lawful 
obligations under Treaty 8. Simply put, questions related to the "precedent affect" 
or "potential cast to Canada" do not bear any relationship to the legal question in 
thismatter. Even if the Commission were to conclude that it was iustifiable for 
Canada to consider the broader policy implications of accepting the claim the 
apparent lack of clarity in the policy (which was developed 14 years ago) cannot 
provide a justifiable reason for the patent delay in this case. 

Given the nairow legal and factual questions before the Commission, there is no 
aooarent reason whv the Soecific Claims Branch has not been able to accent or . . 
rels;t the clhlm a l l kn  i perlurl "I .evsnLeen months 10 I:cbru.iry uJ6, slit 
Spc.til; S l ~ m ;  B ~ I L C ~  i l i ~ . l i  :s~~~~!ated thxt the rrvtew tvou:.l he ;ornplc~-.I . r~:h~n 
krc: rndnrhs nbcn cllr hlCFK firit  pre,icd for :, d r ~ w . , n  91) (be cl3m l l i c  
claimant has orovided enoueh information far Canada to make a decision and, - 
indeed, no further requests for information have been made by Canada. Since 
Canada refused to provide a certain date within which to respond and has not 
offered anv valid eiolanation for the delay. other than to sav that it is under active , . 
review, it is justifiable to conclude that a seventeen month delay is tanramaunt to a 
rejection of the claim for the purposes of responding to the MCFN's request far an 
inquiry 

Finally, questions of fairness and prejudice have been taken into account. First, 
the Commission's decision to proceed with the inqulry is not manifestly unfair or 
ereindicia1 to Canada. ~ l t h o i e h  the Commissionwill hear communitv testimony . . 
on November 26, 1996 from the MCFN, written and oral submissions will not 
proceed until January 1997 at the earliest. The timing of the Commission's inquiry 
into this matter provides sufficient time for the Specific Claims Branch to consider 
the matter and make a decision on whether to accept the claim for negotiation. 

While the Commission's decision to proceed with the inqulry will require that 
Canada expedite its internal review of the claim, they felt obligated to proceed 
with the inquily as requested. The MCFN is simply requesting a timely response 
from Canada on the merits af the claim. If the claim is not accepted far 



negotiation, the MCFN would then be in a position to seek an inquiry before the 
Comissiou or commence leeal oroceedines in the courts as a manner of seekine 
redress. To not proceed with-be inquiry would occasion further delay and could 
frustrate the e%N of the MCFN to have their claim reviewed by an independent 
third DarN. Anv further delav could effectivelv Drevent an aooei to the 
Conkssion before March 1997 and could also prejudice ~W'MCFN's ability to 
seek a legal remedy through the couN if the claim is ultimately bmed thmugh 
limitations periods or the doctrine of laches. In the Commission's view, such a 
result would not be fair in view of the narrow issue that is before Canada and the 
Commission 

If you have any questions or commenfs in regard to any of the above, please feel 
free to contact me at 613-947-3945. 

Sincerely yours, 

Ron S. Maurice 
Commission Counsel 

cc: Chief Waquan, Mikisew Cree First Nation, Via fax: 403-697-3826 
Mr. Michel Roy, Director General, SCB, Via fax: 994-4123 
Cammissionen Bellegarde, Prentice and Corcoran 
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APPENDIX B 

December 1 6 ,  1996 

Chicf A&s Waquan 
Mikisrar Cree Fim Nation 
P.O. Box 90 
FORT CHIPEWYAN AB TOP IBO 

Dear Chief Wnquan: 

On behalf oithe G o v m e n t  of Canada. and in amrdance with the Spuific Claims 
Policy, 1 offer, as art out Mow. lo accept for negotiation of a vttlsment the h4ikixw 
Cree Fm Nation's (MCFN) specific claim rcgardingthc MCFN'I cntiriemem to the 
agicultursl pmvisions ofTTcaty No. 8. 

For h p u p s  of negotiations. Canada acepts that rhc MCFN b sufficiently 
o t ab l i hd  t ha  CMada k a iawful obiigation within thc m c ~ i n g  oflha Spsiflc 
Ciaim, Policy, with rtgard to theclaim. 

m e  s m r  ofthe claims omcul which will k followed hm&r includc: concluion ..~. ... r- - -  - - ~ ~  . 
of a nogotinting pmtoal asend; neg~tiations to-d a scnlemmt agrrcmenS draffiw 
a .mkmcn( wemenc; co~elvding the apement; ratifying thc sgrrcmsnt; and 

lhrouphoul lhe pm-. CaMda's film, mclrdr.lg al! dDsunKnla mbmlnd to Canada 
concvntng the claim, we sublcst lo Be Awun la Information md P n v q  IagrlUon 

AU Rcganettohc 5-2 caoducld on s ' v n h ~ t  prqx l~u"  bmtr Canada and h e  bend 
acrwwledgc that all communlcatlons, o d ,  wnen. t o n a l  or tnrurmsl, arr madc unn 
,he ~nmuon oicncou-g PCNmml of Lhcdnpu~ berwsen rhc parus only. and 
are nor intended to cm~nitute adminions by any pany. 

. I 2  
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The acceotancz of the claim for ncuotiarions is not to bc intemrcted as an admiuion o f  . 
liability or facl by Can&. In the e-vent that no settlement is h c d  and litigation 
cnruer. Canada mwer the right to p l u d  all dcknces available to it, including 
limttation pnods. lashes and lack of admissible evidence 

In the cvat  thnt a find settlemat is reached, the satlement agreement must contan a 
nt- from ywr b d  -ring that this claim canna bc reopead. As pan o f  the 
ssttlment. Canada will alm quire an indemnity fmm your band 

The fcdual negotiator, Mr. tan Gray, har been designated to work with you on 
ruolving this c l im  I wnd my bu t  widtea and I am optiMnic thar r fair mlwnem 
can be rsaEhod. 

Claim ml IndilnGavemmmt 

cc.: Jerome SItvik 




